
 Lehigh and Northampton Transportation Authority 
 
 
 
 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

LANTA Board Meeting 
Agenda 

March 14, 2023 
------------------------------------------  

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Public Comment 
3. Approval of the Minutes – February 14, 2023 Board Meeting  
4. Report of the Chair 
5. Report of Committees 
 

A. Finance & Administration – Fred Williams  
i. Items for consideration of approval: 

a. Financial Statements January 2023, subject to audit 
b. 2023 Title VI Plan Submission 
c. Title VI Definitions  

B. LANtaBus Rider Experience & Planning Committee – Kim Schaffer 
C. Capital Asset Management – Becky Bradley 

i. Items for consideration of approval: 
a. Purchase Order for up to 15 Transit Buses for LANtaBus Fleet.   

D. LANtaVan & Accessibility Committee – Sheila Alvarado 
 

6. Other Items 
7. Adjournment 
--------------------------------------------------  
 
 
 
 



Lehigh and Northampton Transportation Authority 

  

 

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Capital Asset Management Committee 
Agenda 

March 7, 2023 
------------------------------------------ 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Public Comment 
3. Capital Asset Management Dashboard Report  
4. Procurements 

A. Recommendation for Approval – Purchase Order for up to fifteen (15) Fixed Route 
Heavy Duty Transit Buses for fleet replacement and expansion, subject to Buy America 
Audit  

B. Update – LANtaVan Vehicle Delivery 
C. Update – Carbon County Vehicle Delivery 
D. Update - On-Call Architecture, Engineering & Design Services RFP 
E. Update - Bus Stop Installation Services RFP 

 
5. Report on Initiatives 

A. Bus Stop Infrastructure Update 
B. Bethlehem Transportation Center Renovation  
C. Allentown Transportation Center Interior Renovation 

 
6. Actions 

None 
 

7. Other Items  
8. Adjournment 

 
 



Capital Asset Management Dashboard - October -  December 2022

LANtaBus MAINTENANCE FIGURES

Vehicle Availability - percent pull outs made 99.98%
Vehicle Availability - Number of road failures 20                 

% Required On-time Benchmark
LANtaBus Vehicle Preventive Maintenance On Time % 95% 342 325 90%
On-Time % for bus detail cleaning (within 5 weeks) 97% 282 273 90%

Current Q Benchmark
Revenue Miles between Road Failure 44,179         40,000             

Tuesday, March 7, 2023



 

 

 

FY 2023-2024 LANTA FIXED ROUTE BUS PURCHASE  
March 7, 2023 

 
In order to continue to maintain LANTA’s fixed route bus fleet in a state of good repair the Lehigh and 
Northampton Transportation Authority is intended to acquire up to fifteen (15) Compressed Natural Gas 
(CNG) buses through the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania consortium.  Ten (10) buses would be 
replacement vehicles and up to five (5) buses would be expansion of the fleet.  Upon receipt of these 
vehicles the fleet count would be eighty-five (85) – ninety (90) fixed route buses. 
 
This procurement was led by Red Rose Transit Authority (South Central Transit Authority) of Lancaster, 
PA with assistance of development of the Request for Proposal (RFP) as well as reviewing of submitted 
proposals from several authorities in the Commonwealth, including LANTA.  This five (5) year contract was 
awarded to Gillig Corporation, LLC of Livermore, CA effective January 1, 2021.  These buses will be like the 
previous purchases of CNG buses that LANTA has acquired, including the seven (7) received in 2022. 
 
Pricing – Gillig Corporation, LLC 

Bus Size Price Each Quantity Total 
40’ CNG Bus $584,591 15 $8,768,865 

 
Other Costs: 

Supplier Description Price per Bus Price Total 
Transit Resource 
Service, Inc. 

- Online Vehicle Inspection (15) 
- Pre-Award Buy America Audit 

Report (1 per order) 
- Post-Delivery Buy America 

Audit Report (1 per order) 

- $250.00 
 

- $575.00 
 

- $775.00 

- $3,750.00 
 

- $575.00 
 

- $775.00 
 

- $5,100.00 
 
Entire grant total of purchase (up to): $8,773,965.00 
 
The anticipated delivery will be in third quarter of 2024. 
 
Recommendation: Pending the completion of the required pre-award Buy America Audit conducted by 
Transit Resource Services, it is recommended that a purchase order for LANTA’s FY2023-2024 bus 
purchase for up to fifteen (15) 40’ low floor CNG buses be awarded to Gillig Corporation, LLC of Livermore, 
CA. 
 
Brendan Cotter, Sr. Director, Capital Asset Management 
 



Lehigh and Northampton Transportation Authority 
  
 
 
 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

LANTA Finance & Administration Committee 
Agenda 

March 7, 2023 
------------------------------------------  

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Public Comment 
3. Review and Recommendation – Financial Statements January 2023 subject to audit  

 
4. Procurements 

A. Status Update – Printing Services 
B. Status Update – Fare Collection System Upgrade   
C. Status Update – Legal Services  

 
5. Actions 

A. Review and Recommendation – Title VI Plan Submission 
B. Review and Recommendation – Title VI Definitions 

 
6. Other Items 

A. Pension Contribution Adjustments 
 

7. Adjournment 
--------------------------------------------------  
 
 

 

























 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

To: LANTA Board of Directors Finance & Administration Committee 
Fr: Sean Hastings, Procurement Coordinator 
Re: Printing Services Contracts 
Date: March 7, 2023 

 

The Lehigh and Northampton Transportation Authority (LANTA) released a Request for Proposal (RFP) to 
procure a vendor(s) for Printing Services. The RFP was published on January 6, 2023, and was due on 
Pennbid on February 6, 2023. 

Staff posted a notice of the RFP on LANTA’s website and advertised the RFP in a local newspaper. The 
proposal was made available via PENNBID.  

In total six (6) companies submitted proposals for the printing services contract. The six (6) firms 
submitting proposals included: 

 Express Business Center 
 Allegra Lehigh Valley 
 MJJM dba Prestige Color 
 Triangle Press, Inc. 
 AlphaGraphics Lehigh Valley 
 Courier Printing Corp 

After a thorough, comprehensive, and exhaustive review of merits of all proposals by the internal review 
committee, Allegra Lehigh Valley and AlphaGraphics Lehigh Valley were rated highest among the 
proposals deemed to be responsive. Staff recommends awarding two (2) contracts for a period of three 
years commencing March 1, 2023 through February 28, 2026 with two (2) additional optional one-year 
contract extensions, renewable annually at LANTA’s option extending the life of the contract beyond 
February 28, 2026 to Allegra Lehigh Valley and AlphaGraphics Lehigh Valley for printing services. 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:  March 14, 2023 
To: LANTA Board of Directors 
From:  Owen O’Neil, Executive Director 
Subject: Title VI Program   
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 
The Title VI Program is a Federal statute and provides that no person shall, on the grounds of 
race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 
assistance.  
 
LANTA’s last Title VI was submitted on August 26th, 2019. 
 
In compliance with FTA circular 4702.1B Chapter IV Section 3-a-2-d, LANTA is seeking Board 
approval of the Title VI program for submission for March 2023. 
 
The noted circular specifies elements that must be included in the Title VI Plan submission.  The 
elements are described in the following sections. 
 
1. Public Notices, Communications and Opportunities for Participation 
 

A. Title VI Notice and Availability 
B. Title VI Complaint Form and Filing Instructions  
C. List of Title VI Related Complaints Filed 
D. Public Participation Plan 
E. LEP Analysis and Efforts 
F. Description of Decision-Making Bodies 
G. Information Regarding Facility Projects 

 
Key Findings from Section:  
 

 There were no significant changes to policy documents from previous plan document.  
 

 There have been no civil rights, Title VI complaints and or investigations in this reporting 
period. Additionally, there has been no fixed route fare changes, except a deeply 



discounted temporary 31-day pass. This change does not meet the requirements for a 
fare equity analysis. 

 
 LANTA’s LEP Analysis continued to recommend the translation of certain documents 

into Spanish regardless of any requests received. The analysis continued to recommend 
the translation of documents in Arabic, Chines, and Vietnamese upon request.  

 
 In compliance with FTA circular 4702.1B Chapter III Section 4-a-(8) & Section 13 (a-c) 

(Information regarding facility projects and policy for determination of site or location of 
facilities), LANTA had no projects to report on. 

 
2. Service and Performance Guidelines 

 
A. FTA requires transit authorities to have an adopted set of Service and Performance 

Guidelines that establish guideline for: 
a. Vehicle Load 
b. Vehicle Headway / Frequency of Service 
c. Reliability 
d. Service Availability 
e. Distribution of Passenger Amenities 
f. Assignment of Vehicles / Vehicle Cleanliness 

 
Key Findings from Section: 
 

 LANTA’s adopted Service and Performance Guidelines include all required elements.  
 
3. Demographic Analysis of Service Area 
 

A. FTA requires an analysis of the service area to identify the average minority population 
of the service area and sub areas where minority populations exceed that average. This 
analysis is also used to establish which LANTA bus routes are designated as minority 
routes for the purposes of the monitoring review.  

 
Key Findings from Section: 
 

 LANTA completed the required analysis.  
 
4. Customer Demographics and Travel Patterns 
 

A. FTA requires the collection of demographic and socioeconomic data regarding riders to 
establish demographic profiles and to identify fare payment practices and travel 
patterns (i.e., riding frequency, trip purpose, need for transfers) by non-minority and 
minority population groups.  

 



Key Findings from Section: 
 

 LANTA completed the required analysis.  
 
5. Results of Monitoring Review 
 

A. FTA requires transit authorities to analyze their performance versus their own Service 
and Performance Guidelines (as described in Section 2 above) and identify any 
discrepancies in which performance is worse in areas with minority populations higher 
than the service area average, or on bus routes designated as minority routes. 

 
Key Findings from Section: 
 

 LANTA used various data sources to complete the required analysis for each element of 
the Service and Performance Guidelines and found no noteworthy discrepancy between 
areas with higher than average minority population and those without, or between 
minority routes and non-minority routes.  

 
6. Evaluation of Service and Fare Changes 
 

A. FTA requires the establishment of key definitions to allow for and guide equity analyses 
for major service or fare changes. 

B. Transit authorities must also report on instances in the review period that met these 
definitions and provide documentation that any required equity analyses were 
performed.    

 
Key Findings from Section: 
 

 Required definitions for the plan period will be presented to the Board in a separate 
memo.   

 Based on definitions from last plan period, LANTA had 2 service changes that has met 
the threshold of a “Major Service Change.” Service equity analysis have been 
completed. The results show none of these have had a disparate impact.  

 
 
 



 
 

Definition of Major Service Change and Disparate Impact / Disproportionate Burden  
for the purposes of Title VI compliance 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
LANTA is currently preparing the 2023 triennial update of its Title VI Assessment in accordance with FTA 
Circular 4702.1B.   
 
The FTA Circular recommends that FTA grantees adopt a definition of “major service change”.  It is 
proposed that the 2023 triennial update will include the definition that the threshold for “major service 
change” be any change resulting in an impact of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the revenue service 
hours of any route.   
 
The major service change threshold excludes any change to service that are caused by the following:  
 

 Service Replacement – The service being reduced on a particular route is being replaced by 
another route resulting in an impact of less than 25% of revenue service hours along the route 
alignment.   

 Initiation/Discontinuance of Temporary, Demonstration, or Third Party Supported Services - The 
initiation or discontinuance of a temporary transit service that has been or will be in effect for less 
than one year; demonstration services or service that is being financially supported by specific 
grant or other third party financial support.  

 Initiation/Discontinuance of any Promotional Services or Fares.  
 Natural or Catastrophic Disasters - Forces of nature such as flooding, hurricanes, or other natural 

disasters or human-caused catastrophic disasters that may force the suspension of transit service 
for extended periods of time.  

 Temporary Route Detours – A short-term change to a route caused by road construction, routine 
road maintenance, road closures, bridge restrictions, or other uncontrollable factors.  

 
In addition, in accordance with FTA Circular 4702.1B, it is proposed that LANTA’s triennial update of its 
Title VI Assessment will include a definition for disparate impact as an impact which affects any racial 
minority group at a rate of more than (15%) higher than non-minorities. This represents the average size 
of minority classifications from the most recent rider survey.  Survey data shows that 43.6% of riders are 
minorities.  
 
Survey data showed 89.71% of LANTA riders would be considered low income by the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Developments (HUD) definition of low income. 80% of area median income (AMI) 
which would be an annual household income of $50,750. Extremely low income is a figure of 30% or an 
annual household income of $19,050. For the purposes of defining a disproportionate burden, the 
threshold of extremely low-income households will be used; and it is proposed that a definition for 
disproportionate burden will be an impact which affects extremely low-income populations at a rate of 
more than (15%) higher than the non-extremely low-income populations. This is consistent with the 
disparate impact definition.   



 
The disparate impact and disparate burden thresholds exclude any changes to fares that are caused by 
the following:  
 

 Initiation/Discontinuance of any Promotional Services or Fares.  
 
Comments or questions regarding these proposed definitions can be submitted for consideration until 
Friday March 24, 2023.  Comments can be submitted in writing by mail to LANTA, Customer Service, 1060 
Lehigh Street, Allentown, PA 18103 or by email at customerservice@lantabus-pa.gov. Comments can also 
be submitted by phone at 610-776-7433.   
 



 
 

RESOLUTION BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING  
2023 TITLE VI PLAN AND REQUIRED DEFINITIONS.  

  
   

 THE UNDERSIGNED, being the duly authorized Chair of the municipal authority known as 

Lehigh and Northampton Transportation Authority (LANTA), and existing under the laws of the 

state of Pennsylvania, hereby certifies that the following Resolution was passed by the 

governing body of said corporation at a meeting of the corporation duly called and convened 

on March 14, 2023:  

  

RESOLVED, the LANTA Board of Directors approves and adopts the required definitions 

as part of the 2023 LANTA Title VI Plan submission as presented in the attached memo.  The  

 

RESOLVED, the LANTA Board of Directors approves the LANTA 2023 Title VI Plan and 

authorizes staff to submit the Plan as presented to the Federal Transit Administration.  

  

 

 

 __________________  ______________________________ 
Date                               Matthew B. Malozi 

Chair of the Authority 
  
  
 
 
  



 Lehigh and Northampton Transportation Authority 
 
 
 
 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

LANtaVan & Accessibility Committee 
Agenda 

March 14, 2023 
------------------------------------------  

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Courtesy of the Floor 

A. Public Comment 
B. Update on comments received at December LANtaVan Committee meeting 
 

3. Dashboard Report 
 

4. Actions 
A. None  

 
5. Report on Initiatives 

A. Transdev Update 
 
6. Other Business   
7. Adjournment 
 
--------------------------------------------------  



 
 
 
 

 
Response to Comments Received During Courtesy of the Floor 
at the previous LANtaVan & Accessibility Committee Meeting 

 
No comments were received during the December 13 meeting of the Committee.  

  



% Change
Total % of Total Total % of Total Total Sponsor

9,870          25% 10,103        27% -2% LANTA
17,277       44% 16,637        44% 4% PennDOT

9,988          26% 9,103          24% 10% PA DHS CMS/State MA Funding
1,319          3% 1,149          3% 15% PennDOT

390             1% 970              3% -60% Various
38,844       100% 37,962        100% 2%

% Change
Total % of Total Total % of Total Total Sponsor
19,155       26% 14,914        22% 28% LANTA
33,261       44% 27,242        41% 22% PennDOT
18,870       25% 19,936        30% -5% PA DHS

2,501          3% 2,542          4% -2% PennDOT
1,102          1% 2,210          3% -50% Various

74,889       100% 66,844        100% 12%

Q2 FY2023 Q2 FY2022
Program Funding Source

ADA LANtaBus Op/Cap

LANtaVan Dashboard Report
Tuesday, March 14, 2023
Reporting Period:
Q2 October 2022 - December 2022

Total Completed Trips by Funding Source 
Q2 Comparison

Total

Total Completed Trips by Funding Source
YTD Comparison

YTD FY2023 YTD FY2022
Program

Lottery PA Lottery Funds
MATP
PwD Proj of Stwde Signif
Other Various

PwD Proj of Stwde Signif
Other Various
Total

MATP Out of County Trip Statistics

Funding Source
ADA LANtaBus Op/Cap
Lottery PA Lottery Funds
MATP CMS/State MA Funding

MA OOC NC 376 8063.87
Total 633 14464.04

Q2 FY2023
Program Completed Trips Revenue Miles
MA OOC LC 257 6400.17

26,575.30 20,930.05 44,583 2.13 3.04

Scheduled Trip Summary - All

Service Productivity - All
Q2 FY2023

Service Hours Revenue Hours Passenger Trips PT/Rev Hours Scheduled Eff

Q2 FY2023
Scheduled Trips IVR Cancels Day of Service Cancel No Shows

63,560 2,449 3,124 726



Full Fare Copay Trips % of Trips
29.35 $4.40 17,578        49%
35.35 $5.30 12,271        35%
41.35 $6.20 5,671          16%

35,520        100%

Miles Minutes Serv Speed Miles Minutes Serv Speed Miles Minutes Serv Speed
Total 10.91 41.05 15.95 10.20 34.85 17.56 7% 18% -9%

13.6               13.5          

<30 31-60 61-90 >90 >120
22,149 10,429 3,902 1501 863
57.0% 26.8% 10.0% 3.9% 2.2%

57%
94%
77%
88%

Before Pick 
Up Window

In Pick Up 
Window

1 - 30 
Minutes 

Late

31 - 60 
Minutes 

Late

>60 
Minutes 

Late
7952 22058 8834 0 0

20.5% 56.8% 22.7% 0.0% 0.0%

77%
55%

Riders by Fare Zone - All
Q2 FY2023

Zone
Base

2
3

Average Length Average Length Average Length

LANtaBus Figure LANtaBus Figure

Duration of Trips - Q2 FY2023

Total

Trip Pattern Statistics - All Passengers
Quarter Comparison

Q2 FY2023 Q2 FY2022 % Change

% ADA Trips within FRE
% ADA within 15 mins. of FRE

On Time Performance - Client Pick Up Trips
Q2 FY2023

Time vs Window
Trip Total

Q2 FY2023
Minutes
Trip Total
Trip Total As Percentage

Percent Trips 30 mins or less
Percent Trips 90 mins or less

Trip Total As Percentage

Total % On Time & Early
LANtaBus On Time



Weekday Saturday Sunday Weekday Saturday Sunday
481 104 59 542 117 61

3:17 1:21 1:24 4:52 0:49 1:43

Number % of Total Number % of Total
34 18% 35 38%

6 3% 7 8%
22 11% 9 10%
28 15% 13 14%

7 4% 7 8%
37 19% 4 4%

0 0% 0 0%
40 21% 6 7%
19 10% 11 12%

193                100% 92                 100%

201                413

113 56                 
344                678

Q2 FY2023 (Current) Q1 2023 (Previous)

Average Daily Call Volume
Average Call Wait Time

Complaints Received
Q2 Comparison

LANTA Call Center Report 
Comparison

Care Driving/Comfort
Van did not show
Fare Disputes
Overcrowding
Trip Length
Other

Q2 FY2023 Q2 FY2022
Subject of Complaint
Late
Early
Driver Attitude

Total

Trips per Complaint

Complaints Deemed Valid
Trips per Complaints Deemed Valid



Month

November

4
4
4

227,963      

Oct - Dec 2022
Issue Details and Response Determination

Mobility Device 
Securement

Rider reported that driver did not secure wheelchair properly. 
Review confirmed. Driver received coaching on policy and 

retraining.
Valid

Ramp Deployment
Rider reported that driver did not deploy the ramp upon 

request. Review confirmed. Driver received coaching on policy.
Valid

October

Total Complaints for Quarter
Total Valid
Total Valid or Inconclusive
Valid Complaints per LANtaBus Trip

None

Ramp Deployment
Rider reported that driver made comment to rider when 

deplyong ramp after driver request. Review confirmed. Driver 
received coaching on policy.

Valid

Ramp Deployment
Rider reported that driver made comment to rider when 

deplyong ramp after driver request. Review confirmed. Driver 
received coaching on policy.

Valid

December


	Board Agenda 031423
	LANTA CAM Committee Packet 030723
	CAM Agenda 030723
	CAM Dash
	Bus Purchase Memo 030723

	LANTA F&A Committee Packet 030723
	F&A Agenda 030723
	Jan Financials
	Printing Memo
	Title VI 2023 Board Memo
	Title VI Definitions Appendix
	Title VI Resolution 2023

	LANTA LANtaVan & Accessibility Packet 2023 03 14
	LV Agenda 031423
	LV Dash p1
	LV Dash p2
	LV Dash p3
	LV Dash p4


